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Philipstown Planning Board




                     Meeting Minutes





        February 16, 2006

The Philipstown Planning Board held its regularly monthly meeting on Thursday, February 16, 2006 at the VFW Hall, Kemble Avenue, Cold Spring, New York.  The meeting was opened at 7:30 p.m. by the Chairman, George Cleantis.






Public Hearing
James Ely and Lori Ely-Onufreychuk - Modification of existing approval - 273 Route 301, Cold Spring: Discussion
Mr. Pagones recused himself and left the table.

Mr. Watson said that the Ely’s felt it would be in their better interest to eliminate the driveway into the existing house in favor of extending the easement across the middle lot to meet their lot from the new driveway.  He said that essentially they are asking the Board to modify the Resolution to create the situation where they can screen off the front of their property, close the driveway, and take the existing driveway and extend it into the same turnaround/parking area that they have now.  Mr. Watson said that they have been through all of the technical issues and there was not very much involved in building the driveway across.  He said that he believed they had demonstrated previously that a fire truck can maneuver and turn.  Mr. Watson said that they have Health Department approval, driveway permits, and a highway work permit.

Mr. Cleantis asked if any Board members had any questions or comments.

Mr. Merante said that it was definitely an improvement.

Mr. Cleantis asked if CAC/Wetlands had any comment.

There was no comment.

Mr. Cleantis asked if any of the advisors had any comment.

There was no comment.

Mr. Cleantis asked if the public had any comment.

There was no comment.

Ms. Doherty made a motion to close the public hearing.  Mr. Merante seconded the motion.  The motion was carried unanimously and was as follows:





George Cleantis
-
In favor





Josephine Doherty
-
In favor





Michael Gibbons
-
In favor





Kerry Meehan

-
In favor





Anthony Merante
-
In favor





Andrew Pidala
-
In favor





Pat Sexton

-
In favor

Ms. Herring distributed the Part 2 and stated that based on the EAF Part 2 from the last meeting, there were no impacts associated with this application.  She said that the only impact was Impact on Plants and Animals, and that should be checked “Potentially Large”.  Ms. Herring said all other items should be checked “No”.

Mr. Watson said that he believed they answered that question the last time.

Ms. Herring said that initially, they had marked a potential species and Mr. Watson said that they had taken that off.

Mr. Gibbons asked if it was threatened or just questioned.

Mr. Watson said that he thought there was a comment letter from the State that they anticipated there was definitely goldenrod, which is a threatened species.  He said that he did not know if it was endangered.  Mr. Watson said that with the discussions with Mr. Miller’s office, he felt it was not an issue that needed to be addressed in the Part 2 the last time.  He said that he believed he had a letter from Mr. Coleman that said that he did make a site inspection, but it came in after the approval last time.  Mr. Watson said that he was certain they eliminated that from being a problem, but couldn’t remember the specific reason.  He said that it was not something he would have initiated, as he frankly did not know enough about it.

Ms. Doherty said that the Board must have been satisfied, otherwise it would not have approved the subdivision.  She said that the only change now is that they will have one driveway instead of two, so she did not see how it would have more of an impact.  

Ms. Herring agreed and said that the Board approved a Negative Declaration.

Mr. Meehan made a motion to accept the Part 2.  Ms. Sexton seconded the motion.  The vote was as follows:


George Cleantis
-
In favor





Josephine Doherty
-
In favor





Michael Gibbons
-
In favor





Kerry Meehan

-
In favor





Anthony Merante
-
In favor





Andrew Pidala
-
In favor





Pat Sexton

-
In favor

Ms. Herring distributed a Resolution for the Board’s approval.  She said that basically the Resolution summarizes that the subdivision has been already approved and this is a minor change to that subdivision, adding the new easement and eliminating the existing driveway.  Ms. Herring said that it does not count as a new Resolution.  She said that the final subdivision is currently extended to March 13th, and that does not change.

Mr. Merante made a motion to approve the Resolution (copy attached) as written.  Mr. Gibbons seconded the motion.  The vote was as follows:






George Cleantis
-
In favor





Josephine Doherty
-
In favor





Michael Gibbons 
-
In favor





Kerry Meehan

-
In favor





Anthony Merante
-
In favor





Andrew Pidala
-
In favor





Pat Sexton

-
In favor

Mr. Watson said that the only condition that has not been fulfilled is the $3500.00 recreation fee, and Mr. Ely delivered a check to him today to deposit tomorrow.  He asked if it was o.k. if the Chairman would sign the mylar and have Mr. Miller’s office hold it until he presents the receipt, to save him a trip.

The Board agreed.

Mr. Pagones joined the table again.






Regular Meeting

Correspondence

1.
Copy of letter dated August 29, 2005 from Badey and Watson to the Wetlands Inspector regarding the Garrison Golf Club submission of wetlands planting plan.

2.
Copy of letter dated January 18, 2006 from Margaret O’Sullivan to Vincent Cestone regarding application for access of Friedman-Kein.

3.
Letter dated January 19, 2006 from Bibbo Associates to the Planning Board regarding Michele Thorpe Holubar.

4.
Copy of letter dated January 25, 2006 from Badey and Watson to David Klotzle regarding Highland Country Club.

Open Space Institute - Special use Permit - Route 9D, Garrison: Referral from ZBA

Mr. Watson introduced Paul Elconin, Mid-Hudson Land Steward representing the organization.  He said that they made application to utilize the historic grist mill on the Highlands Country Club property as a small office and also to conduct educational tours for school children on a periodic basis in the building (pointed out).  Mr. Watson said that he was not sure how old the building is.

Mr. Elconin said middle 1800's to late (inaudible). 

Mr. Watson said that the two hundred year old grist mill fell into disrepair.  It had been used for several different purposes.  Open Space Institute invested a lot of money to restore the mill, they’ve put pictures of it in lieu of the architectural elements, they’ve taken photographs of the restored grist mill and incorporated it into the plan.  Mr. Watson said that there are still several working parts to the grist mill in place and it is one of the few examples of a working grist mill in the Hudson Valley area.  He said that the idea is to bring students in, in small groups of up to twenty that will arrive by bus, be dropped off, be given a tour and then leave.  In addition to that, Mr. Elconin will be located here (pointed out).  Mr. Watson said that he makes sure that the easements they have are being respected and that the property owners are doing what they promised to do - basically protecting the land from over which they hold easements.  He said that it is going to be staffed by one, two or three people at most, and they occasionally will have small meetings.  Mr. Watson said that they are proposing very little activity.  He said that they are taking an area that’s already existing and hoping for approval to modify it to add a couple of parking spaces and formalize what are now informal parking spaces, rebuild an existing parking space (pointed out), so it is a little more serviceable and create a new parking space (pointed out).  He said that their area of disturbance is very small and if he recalled correctly, it is about less than two thousand square feet. Mr. Watson said that they are planning a small retaining wall, some guide rails, and essentially the rest of the site is to remain undisturbed.  He said that the buses if they are larger, will drop off the children that walk up and if it is a smaller van-type, they will be able to drive up.  Daily visits are expected to be four - two in and two out...maybe six at the most, except on those days when they’ll have meetings.  Mr. Watson said that they are seeking approval to use the building for the small office for educational purposes.  It is a way to keep it functional and make it both productive and useful for educational purposes and for the organization.

Mr. Cleantis asked Mr. Watson if he made an application to the Wetlands.

Mr. Watson said yes, they did.

Mr. Merante asked with regard to the grist mill, what the capacity would be if they were going to have tours with children.

Mr. Watson said that he thought perhaps twenty.

Mr. Merante asked if the parking reflected if all twenty were adults.

Mr. Watson said that there are only four spaces and one is really going to be used for the personnel for this (pointed out the Garrison water district treatment plant).  He said that it is checked on a daily basis.  Mr. Watson said that the office requires three spaces, which they’ve provided and if they have any kind of group, the parking will be off-site.  He said that they are not anticipating groups of twenty adults at all.

Mr. Merante asked if they had a bus, where it would park.  He said that Mr. Watson said off-site and asked if it would be the center of the golf course.

Mr. Watson said right.  He said that they have made an arrangement with the Highlands Country Club that the bus would drop off the attendees, whether students or adults, proceed down 9D and into perhaps the maintenance or one of the parking areas in the golf club.

Mr. Merante asked if people would walk from Lower Station Road along the gravel driveway to the site.

Mr. Watson said yes.

Mr. Merante asked if that was two hundred thirty (did not finish sentence).

Mr. Watson said that maybe it is four hundred feet.

Mr. Cleantis asked how many spaces the Code requires.

Mr. Watson said that the Code is not specific with regard to the educational institution, but with regard to the office, it would require three that they’ve provided.

Ms. Doherty asked where people would park when they come to meetings.

Mr. Watson said that they don’t anticipate that there will be very big meetings and they will be able to use the parking spaces (pointed out).

Mr. Gibbons said that they were implying there would be three employees working there, then they would have people visiting to discuss easements - the landowner and the lawyer, probably.

Mr. Watson said that they figured it could be as many as eight people in the building at one time for a meeting.

Mr. Gibbons asked if any were designated as handicapped spaces.

Mr. Watson said no, although they could fit that.

Mr. Gibbons asked if they were ten by eighteen.

Mr. Watson said they were ten by twenty.

Ms. Sexton asked where the handicapped accessibility to the building was.  She asked about the provision to get along the graveled driveway and why they aren’t going to pave it.

Mr. Elconin said that paving the driveway would alter the rustic nature of the area.  He said that they are going to have to construct a ramp that will access the main entrance and that there is actually a side entrance.  Mr. Elconin said that they will have to put in a better (inaudible) accessible path that will go between the two buildings, down to the main building.

Mr. Gibbons asked Mr. Watson if it would be possible to consider handicapped space closer to the building near the ramps.

Mr. Watson pointed to an area on the map and said that they could certainly make it big enough.

Mr. Elconin said that the problem is that on the water district side of the building, you’d have to bring in a significant amount of fill to create a parking space, which is right next to the building.

Mr. Meehan said that by looking at it, they are not going to welcome handicapped children into their site.  He said that he did not see how you could get a bus load of twenty handicapped kids up the driveway.

.Mr. Elconin said that if they come in a van, it is very easy to get up the driveway.

Mr. Watson said that were that really the case, they’d ask them to come in two vans.

Mr. Meehan asked if the chances were high that they would have handicapped students.  He said that when you start inviting...there are going to be all types.

Mr. Watson said that he thought that was absolutely correct, but the chances of there being twenty handicapped students having to negotiate, he thought were not nearly as great.

Mr. Elconin said that the one drawback to the grist mill for handicapped access is that because it is an historic structure, it doesn’t have an elevator in it, so the main area accessible to handicapped would be the first floor, where you get a nice view of the mill stones and some of the mill works.  He said that the bathroom is handicapped accessible and the first floor certainly will be.

Mr. Meehan said that the other problem he had was a bus parking on Lower Station Road to deposit any number of people.  He said that Mr. Watson knows himself it is a terrible road and he  did not know if the school buses even stop on that road.

Mr. Watson said that there is actually a fairly wide space that can be seen on the plan (pointed out), where you can pull off the road.  He said that there were a number of ways and again, if there were a situation where they were having a class from a special school where you might have more than the average number of handicapped students, they could ask them to come in vans and bring the vans up closer.  He said that it would be a rare occasion.  

Mr. Meehan said that they could use the golf carts.

Mr. Elconin said that was not such a far-fetched idea because the golf course is there and they lease the course to the operators.  He said that with advanced notice on a school day, the carts could be made accessible.

Ms. Sexton said that it is inevitable that tour buses are probably going to come in there also.  She asked what the difference would be if adults wanted to see this.  Ms. Sexton asked how they would limit a tour bus if it is open to the public.

Mr. Watson said that it is not going to be open to the public where someone could come uninvited or without making a reservation.  He said that they could not be accommodated if they just stopped, but if they were to call and ask, they would be told there would be a limit of twenty people simply because of the size of the building, and that a smaller vehicle would be more appropriate.  

Mr. Elconin said that it is a “by appointment only” situation.  He said that there will be regular office hours, but for a large group they would have to call ahead and make arrangements.

Mr. Gibbons referred to the number twenty, and asked if that was a number pulled out of the air, or based on the Fire Department’s recommendation that maximum capacity is twenty people.

Mr. Watson said that he would say it is neither.  He said that he and Mr. Elconin talked about the capacity of the building.  Mr. Watson said that that he did not know if the Board received anything from the Fire Department.

Mr. Gibbons said a while ago, but they didn’t limit the numbers.

Mr. Watson said that most of the time, they figured they would be able to accommodate sixteen - that would be the ideal number.  Then they thought someone would bump it up, so they decided within the Statement of Use, that they’d say twenty - a conservative estimate.

Ms. Doherty asked about the possibility of making a site visit.

The Board agreed. 

Mr. Elconin said that he too would like to be there for the visit, as he would like to give the Board a tour of the mill. 

The Board agreed to meet on Sunday, March 5th at 9:30 a.m..

Mr. Elconin asked if it was possible to combine the site visit with the CAC visit if the CAC is interested in coming.

Mr. Cleantis said that they are welcome to come at 9:30 a.m..

Mr. Meehan asked if it would be a public meeting as the Board would be there.

Ms. Herring asked where the Board would meet.

The Board decided to meet at the Garrison Train Station and car pool.

Mr. Gibbons asked where the bus that dropped off the passengers would park.

Mr. Watson said in the parking lot at the golf club.

Mr. Gibbons asked if they had bus parking at the parking lot up there.

Mr. Watson said that he did not believe that there were any spaces per se, but there was the maintenance office where they could pull off and they could take up a couple of spaces.

Mr. Gibbons asked if the Board requested that when they realigned the Pro Shop, etc., that there  be bus parking.

Mr. Watson said yes, they discussed that.

Mr. Gibbons said but nothing was implemented.  He asked if the Board could see those plans again and if the golf course was operated by OSI.

Mr. Elconin said no, it is leased.

Mr. Gibbons said that he would like to revisit where the bus is going to park.

Mr. Elconin said that the general public would be in the building for probably a half of an hour tops, so they are not talking about a long duration of a visit or the bus parking at the golf course.

Mr. Meehan asked if the grist mill would be operating.

Mr. Watson said no, it doesn’t operate.

Mr. Pidala addressed Mr. Watson and said that if the building was going to be opened to the public, they might need exit and emergency lights in there.

Mr. Watson said that they would look into that.

Mr. Cleantis asked how big the inside of the building was.

Mr. Watson said that he believed it was about five hundred square feet.

Mr. Meehan asked how this was powered and if it was water power.

Mr. Elconin said that it was water wheel driven with cast iron interlocking gears, which drove a horizontal drive shaft and grinding stones were powered off the shaft.  He said that there is also a vertical drive shaft that goes up three stories to the attic, which then powered a corn grinder, a chaff separater, the sifter to sift the flour, and it also powered a conveyor belt to get the grain from the second to the third floor.

Mr. Merante asked how long it laid unused and how long it had been in restoration.

Mr. Elconin said that they did a historic building survey in the 1930's and everything was almost in pristine shape in the 30's.

Mr. Merante asked how long it had been under restoration - approximately.

Mr. Elconin said that it took them probably three or four years.

Mr. Gibbons asked if other than the three offices for OSI, there were any firms that were going to be there.

Mr. Elconin said just OSI.

Mr. Gibbons asked the applicant to explain the septic, as he read it would have to be pumped out three to four times a year.  He asked how close they were to the public drinking supply for the Garrison Landing Association and what guarantees they had that they would not be leeching into the supply and if they had the blessing of the Garrison Water District to be operational.

Mr. Elconin said that technically, he did not think they needed the blessing of the Garrison Water District.  He said that the septic system was engineered by an engineer in consultation with the Putnam County Department of Health, and it is down grade from the wells.

Mr. Watson said that in fact, it is not really a system - it is a container.  He said that it is not a cesspool.  Mr. Watson said that a cesspool or leeching field lets the water escape into the earth - go through the earth and be cleansed.  He said that was in fact, what was there previously - there was an old cesspool.  It was too close to the water and there were all kinds of problems with it.  Mr. Watson said that what was engineered was really not a system but a holding tank, so the waste goes directly into the holding tank and HoneyDippers pump it out a couple times a year.

Mr. Meehan said that they must have some kind of a warning alarm for when it rises to a certain level so they don’t get overflow.

Mr. Pidala said yes - he hooked it up.  He said that it has an alarm.

Mr. Gibbons asked who would be responsible if the dam was in need of repair.

Mr. Elconin said that was something that would be worked out between Garrison Highlands LLC and Open Space Institute.

Mr. Gibbons asked if they had something in place.

Mr. Elconin said yes and no.  He said that they have a Capital Improvement Fund that the golf course contributes to and part of that is sort of a “rainy day fund” in case there is a major repair like the dam, etc..  Mr. Elconin said that OSI essentially owns the dam and there’s a special clause in the lease that covers that.

Mr. Merante said that the property seems to be very busy.  The golf course is operated by a lessee, which is Highland Country Club, the whole property is owned by OSE, the water system traverses the entire property, the reservoir is there and the water is flowing down to Garrison Landing, and now there is this facility.  He asked if someone had an overall day-to-day management of the entire site or not and if it was three different entities.

Mr. Elconin said that it is essentially two different entities.  He said that the history of the acquisition is that in 1989, OSI purchased and was donated all of the shares of the Ardenia Corporation.  

Mr. Merante said, so they’re not in the picture anymore.

Mr. Elconin said that right now, technically the owners are Ardenia but OSI owns all of the stock of Ardenia, so Ardenia is a subsidiary of OSI.  He said, so for discussion purposes, OSI owns the property.  Mr. Elconin said that Garrison Highlands LLC manages the golf course.  He said that the Garrison Landing Water District is now going to an underground instead of using the water that comes across 9D, so a lot of those pipes have been taken out because they are no longer under use.

Mr. Merante asked if Open Space Institute had an oversight committee of this entire site.

Mr. Elconin said no, there’s a lease and they work with Garrison Highlands LLC to execute the lease.  He said that they are very good tenants and the only thing they are responsible for on a day to day basis is (inaudible).

Ms. Sexton asked what kind of outside emergency lighting is on the building and if there were going to be meetings in the evening.

Mr. Elconin said that they wouldn’t have the general public coming in in the evening.  He said that there is no lighting along the entrance road.  Mr. Elconin said that there is lighting on the building itself, but in general, they won’t have evening meetings.  He said that if there are one or two evening meetings a year, that would be a lot.

Ms. Sexton asked if there was enough lighting that makes it safe for the people that are there.

Mr. Elconin said yes, you’ll be able to get from the building to the cars that are parked in the spaces.

Ms. Sexton asked how many lights he would say were there.

Mr. Elconin said that there is one light on the building itself.

Ms. Sexton asked if it was like a spot light.

Mr. Elconin said no - it’s by the front door.  He said that it was like a rustic (did not finish sentence).

Ms. Herring said a porch light.

Mr. Gibbons asked if there were any pathways from the main golf course over to here (pointed out on plan).

Mr. Watson said that you can walk up on to the fairway.  

Mr. Gibbons said that in all seriousness, what was the chance of this becoming a municipal golf course.

Mr. Elconin said that he had no idea, but his guess is that there is very little chance.  He said that Putnam County did express an interest in trying to make it a public course, but that is not really an option at this point.  Mr. Elconin said that he did not think they had any interest in turning it into a public course and the public is allowed to golf there at certain times.

Ms. Doherty said that she thought Tim Miller Associates does recommend that the gravel access road be paved.

Ms. Sexton said, and that there be more parking space.

Ms. Herring said that if they are going to have public driving on that driveway, they should install the guard rail at least for a portion of that, as it is a very steep bank going down and it is a fairly narrow road.

Mr. Gibbons asked what the grade of the road itself was.

Ms. Herring said that the road is flat, but narrow in some places, and in the winter if someone should slip, it is a steep bank down, so there should be a guard rail added at least for that portion.

Mr. Gibbons said that he didn’t mind the idea of a guard rail, but wondered about the validity of paving something that theoretically is a historic entity.

Ms. Herring said that it is a recommendation more for the safety of those traveling on it, and if you are going to have the public on it, that is one of the reasons.

Mr. Gibbons said that they have forty four miles of dirt roads in Town that the public travels on, so they don’t pave everything.  He said that he would reserve judgement on that until the Board takes a site visit, but he did not know that he was necessarily in favor.

Mr. Cleantis said that they would bring that up again when they are ready to make a recommendation because that is a valid point.

Ms. Herring stated again that they feel they need a guard rail whether it is wooden or historic looking, but there needs to be something there.  She said that they also feel the site does not have sufficient parking, they think it is going to be hard to manage and prevent anybody from going up the driveway, and if those three parking spots happen to be taken, there is very limited area to turn around.  Ms. Herring said that this should be referred to the Wetlands Advisory Committee due to the one hundred foot buffer and particularly if they are talking about bringing tours in there, it needs to go to the Garrison Fire District, as they need to make sure it has the capacity and sufficient egress.  She said that because of the proximity to the water district treatment facility, they’d like to see a copy of the Health Department permit.  Ms. Herring said that she didn’t see a lighting plan on there.  She said that the grist mill is over fifty years old and may be eligible for State or National Register and that is something that should be investigated at least.  She asked Mr. Watson if with regard to the adjacent adjoiners list the park area was on it, and  for a Type 1 action, if five hundred feet to a park land is valid.

Mr. Watson said that the State certainly owns immediately adjacent to it.

Ms. Herring said that she had it as an Unlisted Action and they had done that previously for the application for the golf course.

Mr. Watson said that it becomes a Type 1 automatically when the thresholds reach twenty five percent of the normal thresholds.  He said that they question whether or not this reaches that twenty five percent.

Mr. Herring said that Mr. Miller had raised the question that if it is within a certain distance to the park, if that was also one of them.

Mr. Watson pointed out State land on the plan and said it is certainly very close to the State property.  He said that it might make it a Type 1 automatically.

Ms. Herring said that was what the question was and she was not able to find it in time.

Mr. Watson said that it doesn’t automatically trigger an EIS.

Ms. Herring said right.

Wheaton-Zelnick - Approval of Minor 2-Lot Subdivision - 1524 Route 9D, Garrison: Submission

Mr. Cleantis said that this application had been submitted previously and they had some discussion.  There were supposed to be additional items added as well as an approval from the ZBA.

Mr. Gibbons asked if the Board got the ZBA approval.

Mr. Cleantis said that Ms. Smith was going to make the presentation and he asked if she got an approval from the ZBA.

Ms. Smith said that she did.  She said that she did not have a signed Resolution, but they gave her a Resolution, they approved it Monday and she sent the information to Mr. Miller’s office.

Ms. Herring referred to the plan and said that the Board had seen it.  She said that it is a subdivision for two lots.  The second lot met the six thousand square feet, but didn’t meet the sixty foot minimum distance for that, so they referred it to the ZBA.  Ms. Herring said that Ms. Smith had said that she thought it was at fifty three or fifty seven of the required sixty feet, so it’s not that the six thousand square feet isn’t there, it is a little skinnier in part of it than it should be.

Mr. Cleantis said, and the ZBA approved that.

Ms. Herring said yes.  She said that she believed that the last time they saw it, the Planning Board had recommended one shared driveway instead of a second proposed driveway.

Mr. Cleantis asked Ms. Smith if she had the one driveway.

Ms. Smith said yes.  She said that she also submitted to the Planning Board a profile and they didn’t meet the fourteen percent, but it is paved and is useable.  Ms. Smith said that the sight distance there is 550 and 565.  She said that with regard to one of Ms. Herring’s comments, she did put those sight distances down, but they were measured by a surveyor.  She said that the plan was not stamped by either surveyor yet, but when all of the revisions are on it, they’ll stamp and sign it.  Ms. Smith referred to the plan and said that the brown part is the existing travel way.  She pointed to the proposed house site, the proposed septic area for which she had done test holes, and another area where she had done test holes.  Ms. Smith said that she has a well location for the proposed lot and a new well location for the existing lot because the well for the existing lot is only twenty five feet from the leeching pits.  It is supposed to be 150.  Ms. Smith said that when she was doing the work, she told the owner who said that was maybe why they were getting sick.  She said that they had the water tested and now drink bottled water.  Ms. Smith referred to the dark line and said that it was the delineation between field topo and the remainder of (inaudible) topo. 

Mr. Gibbons said so the proposed septic for Lot B is totally within the property lines.

Ms. Smith said correct and by law, it has to be ten feet inside the property lines.

Mr. Merante asked if  the existing septic that she said is twenty five feet from the current well  was to be shut down and moved.

Ms. Smith said that there is a whole procedure to abandon a well.  She said that most of the property is going to remain vacant and the driveway is already in.  Ms. Smith said that the previous owners apparently did some more on the house area and there are a lot of loose stones and also some adjoining property owners had cut approximately forty trees on the property, so the house site is pretty much cleared too.

Mr. Merante referred to the narrative talking about the neighbors to the east and south and asked Ms. Smith if she could give the Board an idea of where.

Ms. Smith said yes, she had photos and she distributed the photos to the Board.

Mr. Gibbons asked if the travel way was within the limits of the Code.

Ms. Smith said yes.

Mr. Pidala asked if there was enough room for a fire truck to turn around.

Ms. Smith said that when the house is built, she would expect that they’ll make the parking area in front.

Mr. Pidala asked if there was room for a fire truck there.

Ms. Smith said yes, it is a very big area.  She pointed to an area and said that it was paved and that you could turn and park four fire trucks there.

Mr. Pidala referred to a section on the plan and asked if it was going to be a right-of-way.

Ms. Smith said yes, but when it is an emergency, they can go there.

Mr. Meehan asked how wide it was.

Mr. Cleantis said that it is hundreds of feet, so there’s no doubt you could turn around.

Ms. Herring said that Ms. Smith said the existing driveway was above fourteen percent.  She asked what the grade was.  

Ms. Smith said that she had them written.

Ms. Herring asked if in the future she would put the grades in. She said that the comments they had was that the topographic information was compiled from two different places and a surveyor should certify that.  Ms. Herring said that it needs a 239 referral to Putnam Country Planning since it is along Route 9D.  She said that 9D is fairly scenic, there are a lot of trees existing on the site right now, and they recommend the Planning Board request an area close to Route 9D that will be a no-cut area for the trees and replaced in kind should any be cut.

Mr. Cleantis asked what the distance was from 9D back into the property.

Ms. Herring said that it is recommended within a hundred feet.

Ms. Smith said that you would have a minimum of ten feet because of the setback for the septic and she doesn’t need any fill in the septic, so she would only have to cut half and she probably could arrange it that the expansion would be closer to Route 9D.  However, the site is pretty steep and the area is fifteen percent.  Ms. Smith said that she needed the area for the septic, but the law is that it be ten feet from the property line, so this area (pointed out) wouldn’t have any trees cut at least ten feet in.  She said that she could try to maintain another strip into the expansion below it.

Ms. Herring asked what the distance was from Route 9D to the bulk of the driveway. 

Ms. Smith said that there is no intention to cutting trees.

Ms. Herring said other than where the septic is needed....if it was said that the trees from the driveway down, obviously if they need to install septic...(did not finish sentence).

Mr. Cleantis said as a no-cut zone.

Ms. Herring said right - except the septic.

Mr. Cleantis said, and that would be a note on the plat.

Ms. Smith said that was really agreeable to the owner because Central Hudson area is below them and they don’t want to see them.

Ms. Herring said that an EAF had indicated that (inaudible) is going to be required.

Ms. Smith said no, not necessarily, but she didn’t want to say that definitely.  Ms. Smith said that there would be a note on the plat that they would follow State...(did not finish sentence).

Mr. Cleantis said that she had a note on the plat indicating the generic terms with regard to that.

Ms. Herring said that because it is a shared driveway, for the portion from Route 9D to where the property line for Lot 2 is, there needs to be an easement on Lot 1 to benefit Lot 2, and a maintenance agreement for that portion of the driveway.

Mr. Cleantis said that the easement was not shown on this map.

Ms. Smith said no, she didn’t do that and she would also do a verbal description of the easement and the maintenance agreement and all the corrections prior to the public hearing, including the surveyor’s stamp.

Ms. Sexton referred to the environmental forms with regard to the birds, etc., and said that she knew Ms. Smith sent a letter sort of answering that.  She asked if anything else had to be done on that.

Ms. Smith said that it said they were near Constitution Marsh, but they are more than half of a mile away and as far as any of the marine life, they are several hundred feet higher than that.

Ms. Sexton said that it was just that they were very specific in naming all this stuff and she wondered if any of this stuff is on the property.

Ms. Smith said no, they just identified the proximity to Constitution Marsh and the other with the historic proximity to Boscobel.

Mr. Cleantis asked if the Board felt it had enough information to schedule a public hearing for next month.

Ms. Doherty said that she thought as long as Ms. Smith is able to provide the information two weeks before the next meeting.

Mr. Gibbons asked if the lawsuit with the cut trees was still an open case.  He asked if there was anything coming about with regard to restitution of the trees that were cut. 

Ms. Smith pointed to where the majority of the trees were and said that there were several in another area.  She said that there are some on the house site, but she did not know how they were doing that.

Mr. Gibbons asked if the lawsuit was from the Town because they cut the trees.

Ms. Smith said no.

Mr. Gibbons asked if the lawsuit was between the neighbors.

There was no answer.

Mr. Merante asked Ms. Smith why that was in the package and concerned the Planning Board.

Ms. Smith said that it doesn’t concern the Board, but she put it in the narrative because there is a section in the application that asks for wooded and cleared areas, and she put it down the way it is - where the entire house site is cleared.  She said that if the Board went on the site and saw all the trees cut down and didn’t know that the owner didn’t do it, they would ask what was going on.  

The Board agreed to hold a site visit on this property.  It too will be on March 5th  at 10:15 a.m..

Mr. Cleantis said that a public hearing would be scheduled on this matter for next month.

MCHP Realty LLC - Site Plan Application - 3504 Route 9, Cold Spring: New Submission

Mr. Pidala recused himself from this application and left the table.

Mr. Watson said that the property is located on Route 9.  The middle of the property is about four hundred feet south of Mill Road.  The property now has two main buildings on it, which the applicant intends to raise completely.  He’d like to build a garage for storing his vehicles - 60 by 120.  Mr. Watson presented the plan and pointed out a new entry which is moved slightly to the north of the existing entry so it lines up with the entry across the street, access to the rear of the building, an area to park three or four cars, a couple additional parking spaces to the southwest, a connection of the existing property, and access into the back of a new building - 60 by 120 feet.  He said that they are adjacent to a resident district boundary.  They have aligned it in such a way so that they are providing a buffer that’s required by the zoning law.  He said that essentially they are looking to take down the existing site and rebuild a new site.  Mr. Watson said that they realize this application needs a variance.  He said that they’d like to push the building a little bit further so that they can keep the parking in the rear of the building.

Mr. Cleantis said that the variance is 3.7 feet and asked if it was worth going to the ZBA for that on the one variance.

Mr. Watson said that it is a twenty five foot variance from the middle of the road.  He said that there is a double setback on Route 9.  Mr. Watson said that the required setback from the middle of Route 9 is supposed to be a hundred - that’s a twenty five foot variance.

Ms. Herring said that they currently need two variances.  One is for three feet and change and the other one is twenty five feet.

Mr. Watson said that was correct.  He said that essentially they’re the same thing - it is how far you’re back to Route 9.

Mr. Cleantis asked where Mr. Watson would put the building if he were to not get the variance.  He asked if they would be off the property.

Mr. Watson said that if they were denied the variance, they would have to reduce the size of the building - they would have to pull it back or turn it ninety degrees.  He said that if they were to rotate the building and put the narrow end of the building toward the street, Mr. Miller suggested that then they could perhaps do it without any kind of variance at all.  Mr. Watson said that his initial reaction to that was that they would now expose a lot more parking, give an end of the building toward the front rather than a finished front toward the street, and it would not be nearly as attractive.  He said that in order to dress it up, they did a fairly extensive landscaping plan in the front to provide some view of the building, a nice landscaped area and a very affective screening in the parking and turning areas.

Mr. Cleantis said that it seemed to him that coming before the Board for a variance is a better way to deal with it than have the Town get rid of the existing setbacks.  He said that they have a fifty foot setback, but where they can’t have a fifty foot setback, he’d rather see them come to the Planning Board, work out the design and show the Board there’s a direct reason for them to have a lesser setback.  Mr. Cleantis said that what the Board is seeing with the application is that there is a variance procedure that they can follow in order to get this done.  He said that his  presentation is that this situation will appeal more on Route 9, and much of the Board’s discussion has to be with regard to that.

Ms. Doherty said that Mr. Cleantis made a very good point and she would much rather see it dealt with on an individual basis than changing the zoning.  She said that she thought the Planning Board had expressed the feeling that it would be a big mistake to reduce the setbacks on Route 9.

Mr. Cleantis said that the Board has expressed that view on many occasions.

Mr. Watson said that the buildings have been rehabilitated and painted.  He said that it is time for an upgrading of this site generally speaking.  Mr. Watson referred to the green area and said that it was pushed in because they are against the zoning district boundary which gives them a thirty-five foot setback and it requires them to provide a significant screen within that area.  He said that minimizes the distance to come out of the building.  If they were to push back anything, it would be reducing that maneuverability.  Mr. Watson said that their feeling is that this will do the best job of hiding the parking area/maneuvering area and will avoid trucks going out, coming up, going in, getting loaded up and going back.   He said that if they were to turn the building ninety degrees and push it back so that it is a hundred feet back from the road, they will not be able to have the crossover/connection and a lot of the businesses expected to come to the trucking yard are expected to come out here (pointed out), so they have that interior connection, which also makes sense in terms of the number of trips back and forth on Route 9.

Mr. Cleantis asked if this would have a similar facade to the other of Mr. Giachinta’s auto mechanic’s building and if he had any elevations for the Board.

Mr. Watson said that he did - not colored, that was in the Board’s package.  He presented the plan to the Board and said that the front of the facade was a brick lower half, a stucco above the brick band, and some dormers in front.  He pointed out the rear of the building.

Mr. Cleantis asked if there were residences behind there looking at the rear of the building.

Mr. Watson said yes, the Campbell residence and that is why they provided the screen that is required.  He said that he thought there was an elevation difference down there that helps with that possibility, but he did not know for certain.

One of the Board members asked if they would be lower.

Ms. Herring said lower.

Mr. Meehan said that this was just a garage.

Mr. Watson said yes, there is a small office area and a bathroom.

Mr. Meehan said that they are not going to repair the trucks.

Mr. Watson said no.  He said that there will be oil kept in there to top it up when the oil is checked in the day, but the maintenance of the repairs, etc., is off-site.

Mr. Meehan asked if there was outside storage.

Mr. Watson said that there is no outside storage.

Mr. Cleantis asked how high the building would be.

Mr. Watson said that it is thirty four feet.

Mr. Meehan asked what the elevation in the back was and if the property owners could look down and were lower.

Mr. Watson answered (inaudible).

Ms. Sexton asked what the normal hours of operation were.

Mr. Watson said that they covered that in the Statement of Use.

Ms. Sexton said that she read it, but didn’t remember.

Mr. Watson said that he didn’t either.

Ms. Doherty said Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. and on Saturday, 7:00 a.m. to noon.

Mr. Watson said that the trucks will be inside so it will be warmer, and they’ll be less warm-up and outside time, so that will help.  He said that there is no outside storage at all.

Mr. Gibbons said that the trucks themselves would not be parked outside the corporation.

Mr. Watson said no.  He said that the trucks will be parked inside.

Mr. Pagones said that the Zoning Board by law, is supposed to give the smallest variance possible, so they are going to need a good reason why they can’t move it back to three feet.

Mr. Watson said that he understood that.

Mr. Cleantis asked if they could move it in another direction to get the three feet - move it southeast.

Mr. Watson said no, that’s tight too.  He said that he hasn’t looked at it so closely that he could tell the Board absolutely not, but he knows this is an issue.

Mr. Meehan asked Mr. Watson if he could show the Board something if he had to rotate the building.

Mr. Watson said yes, he could, but he could not show the Board now.

Mr. Meehan said that when he brings the trucks in, they might decrease the turnaround area in there.

Mr. Watson said that he thought it probably would provide more turning area.  He said that the turning area would be exposed, the garage doors would be exposed - there’s a whole bunch of stuff that would have to happen.  Mr. Watson said that the connection inside would have to be gone.

Mr. Meehan said that it may be a good argument for the variance.

Mr. Cleantis said that he thought one of the things the ZBA will be asking for would be alternatives, and he thought one of the things the Planning Board’s advisors suggest is that there be a possibility for an alternative, so at least a sketch or some kind of plan to show what that alternative is, then they could make the presentation that it would not be suitable and show the Board why it wouldn’t work.

Mr. Watson said that Ms. Herring actually had an overlay sketch.

Ms. Herring said that they tried to do that in their office and look at some other options.  She said that Mr. Miller had looked at slightly reducing the size of the building, but with that 35 foot buffer for the residential district, the only alternative would be to sever that connection.  Ms. Herring said that she thought his goal was more to get rid of the connection to Route 9.  She presented a sketch and said that it was a fairly rough sketch, but the Board would see that Mr. Miller had looked at changing the orientation of the building and keeping it back at the 100 foot setback, but you end up seeing the driveway connection actually going within the 35 foot residential setback buffer and that was already twenty feet shorter, so that is one bay of trucks.

Ms. Sexton said, and then you’re looking at the point of a building.

Ms. Herring said that the area within the hundred foot buffer would provide much better opportunity to buffer and possibly do on-site stormwater detention and the end facade of the building could be dressed up.  She said that the problem is that even reduced by twenty feet with the thirty five foot residential setback, you can’t keep the connection there.

Ms. Doherty said that she thought it was important they keep that buffer through the residential district and she did not think that the connection between the two parcels should invade it.

Ms. Herring said that looking at that and removing the connection is an alternative the ZBA or the Planning Board’s recommendation to the ZBA would be based on looking at other options.  She said that they cut out the building and put it on the site every which way they could, and really that was the best option other than what’s proposed.

Mr. Cleantis addressed Mr. Watson and said that he did not know if he wanted to formalize that any more for the ZBA, but as recommended they will be asking for an alternative, and certainly the minutes will reflect that.  He said that it seemed to him that the consensus of the Planning Board is that the original plan is superior to this alternative.

Several of the Board members agreed.

Mr. Watson said that he would like the Board’s Resolution advising him that it cannot further consider this because it requires a variance that gets him in into the variance (inaudible), and if the Board would also consider a positive recommendation with regard to the setback variance, he would appreciate having that in the motion.

Ms. Sexton made a motion that the Planning Board make a positive recommendation to the ZBA for the variance.  Mr. Meehan seconded the motion.  The vote was as follows:





George Cleantis
-
In favor





Josephine Doherty
-
In favor





Michael Gibbons
-
In favor





Kerry Meehan

-
In favor





Anthony Merante
-
In favor





Andrew Pidala
-
Recused





Pat Sexton

-
In favor

Ms. Herring asked if the applicant would give the Board some information on the lighting plan.  

She said that although they commend the architectural look and the adding of windows to the front, it should be noted to the Board that this is going to be significantly closer than the properties.  Ms. Herring said that it is twenty feet difference from Pidala Oil’s building to Route 9 and seventy feet closer.  She said that it is a large building no matter how you look at it and it is going to have a significant impact - visual impact, even with some of the landscaping.  Ms. Herring said that Mr. Watson had mentioned they wanted the building to be seen, but with the height of the trees, the bushes against the building facade are going to look tiny.

Ms. Cleantis asked what the shrubs against the building were.

Mr. Watson said that they are various shrubs.  He did not know all of them.  Mr. Watson said that there are minor evergreens, major evergreens, minor deciduous, and major deciduous trees.

Mr. Cleantis said that the Board can certainly address the sizing of those trees, etc., when the plan comes before the Board again.  He said that he was not sure he had a problem with the setbacks because the versification of buildings on the road actually gives a more pleasant look than everything being at the same line back.  Mr. Cleantis said that this was not going to be as big as the Habitat Revival Landscaping building and asked Mr. Watson if it was.

Mr. Watson said that he did not believe so.

Mr. Meehan said that it shouldn’t be.

Ms. Sexton said that the Board should find out the height of that building.

Mr. Cleantis said that it has to be well over forty feet.  He said that it is a nice looking building, but it is very high.  Mr. Cleantis said, but this won’t be anything like that.

Mr. Watson said that he did not believe so, but he would check for the Board.

Ms. Herring said that they had also talked about possibly lowering the elevation a bit, so the building would sit a little bit lower.

Mr. Watson said that the difficulty with that again has to do with making this (pointed out) connection.  He said that they have a short, but relatively steep grade.

Ms. Herring asked if it was already lower.

Mr. Watson said yes, it is coming down and the general slope of the land is down that way.

Mr. Cleantis asked what the basic elevation of the slab point and the center line of the highway  was.

Mr. Watson said that the slab is at three hundred feet and eight inches and the elevation outside is 294, so it is a six foot rise.

Mr. Cleantis asked if he thought the landscaping could make up the difference.

Mr. Meehan said that if it was an attractive building, how much landscaping do they want to put in front of it.

Mr. Cleantis said that this was something the Board could take up again and it needed to look at the elevations because it is going to be imposing.

Ms. Doherty said that she thought the Board probably wanted to see the details - colors, materials, etc..

Mr. Cleantis said that they have no doubt he is going to make it an attractive building.

Ms. Sexton said that one of the things that makes the garage pleasant looking is that the facade is really nice and it goes down.  She said that it is natural.  Ms. Sexton said that it is all landscaped and very pretty, and this would be the opposite.

Mr. Cleantis agreed.

Ms. Sexton said that she knows they want to see the building, but she was not opposed to putting some screening that’s in line with the height.

Mr. Cleantis said that he thought the consensus of the Board is that it make a positive recommendation for the ZBA to go that route, but it is going to scrutinize that with regard to the landscaping and building elevations.

Mr. Watson said that they would work with the Planning Board and give them a rendering of what this would look like.

Mr. Gibbons asked if this and the property beside it were at the same elevation.

Mr. Watson said that this is a little higher.

Mr. Cleantis said that someone had made a good point with regard to lowering the building to the road height.  He said that it brings the berm up about four or five foot higher in the front, which in a sense, lowers the profile of that building down somewhat, so it is something to consider.

Mr. Gibbons said that he knew it was unusual for the Planning Board at this point, but he wouldn’t mind starting to look at sidewalks throughout especially the commercial areas.  He said that he wouldn’t mind seeing a rendering even if the sidewalk is only the length of the driveway, and if they could start getting them in Town where people could walk from place to place.  Mr. Gibbons said that with regard to the lighting, he brought up at the last meeting that they have seen a lot of utility poles with the halogen lamps, and if they are going to use that with this project, he wants to see it on the plan.  He said that because this is up against a residential area in the rear, the drawing shows lights beside each garage door in a vertical.  Mr. Gibbons asked if they could bring them over the garage door in a horizontal and have them black on top, so that they are just shining on the area in front of the door and not general lighting everywhere.  

Mr. Cleantis said that they would come back to this application.

Mr. Watson said that he would not be back for at least three months.

MCHP Realty LLC - Site Plan Application 2761 Route 9, Cold Spring: Submission

Mr. Watson said that this application is the first application that the Planning Board has ever had for self-storage units.  He said that the zoning law was amended perhaps a year ago to allow self-storage units in an industrial district and this application is seeking approval for just that.  Mr. Watson said that the property is on the west side of Route 9, three or four hundred feet north or Post Road Hardware and Lane Gate Road.  He said that they are hoping to get approval to enter the property at the south end, come into a loop road/driveway system that will allow them to access four self-storage buildings.  The site is fairly level in the front, it then goes up to the south and then falls down fairly steeply on the property to the west.  Mr. Watson said that the site will require grading and a series of retaining walls along the south side to make the site flat enough to accommodate the self storage buildings.  He said that there will be three parking spaces outside of the gate for new customers or people that are coming in to pay their bill and don’t need to get into the site.  There will be some spaces inside the gate, and then of course the isles are wide enough to accommodate someone stopped along there to load up and unload and someone to pass them.  There is a manager’s quarters office building in the front of the property and septic area in the front of the property.  Mr. Watson said that one of the plans the Board has is the stormwater management plan, which is required for this.  Toward the rear of the property is on site detention and a black fence surrounding all of the use for security and a substantial screening around the entire property and a decorative landscaping plan to both screen and provide a pleasant view of the road.  Mr. Watson presented a plan with a view and he said they spent a fair amount of time getting their perspective correct, they tried to figure out where the site would be most visible from Route 9, and ultimately decided that as you are approaching it from the south and looking in to the property from a point just opposite the southeast corner, it is what you would see.  He said that the trees were about ten years out.  He referred to the map and pointed out the office manager’s corners, board and batten siding with some stone work in the entry outcove, dormers, facade on the back of the building, and landscaping.  Mr. Watson said that they did not show any of the existing higher landscaping.   He said that the building has a relatively flat roof - just a minimal pitch on the roof.  The garage doors will be set on the side perpendicular to the building as the regulations require. Mr. Watson said that the only lighting they are proposing in the back is security lighting.  The Statement of Use specifically says that the operation will be curtailed so it doesn’t happen after dark, so that there would be no reason to light the site.  It will not be available to customers twenty four hours a day.  Mr. Watson said that the manager will live on the site.

Mr. Cleantis said that there are no variances required.

Mr. Watson said that the are no variances required.

Ms. Sexton asked if Mr. Watson said with regard to the storage units, board and batten.

Mr. Watson said yes, the siding is board and batten.

Ms. Sexton said for the storage units.

Mr. Watson said not around the entire storage units.

Ms. Sexton said so, it would be metal.

Mr. Watson said yes.

Ms. Sexton said that is horrendous.

Ms. Doherty asked how that complied with the Board’s Design Standards.  She asked if the Design Standards applied to this and said that they certainly should.

Mr. Watson said that he didn’t know the answer to that.

Ms. Doherty said that they certainly should.  She said that she thought one of the things they had agreed on was that metal buildings had to have some kind of an architectural finish.

Ms. Sexton said some kind of a brick finish - something to make it look decent and not look like storage units.

Mr. Watson said that is why they put the board and batten on the ends - it would give you a facing side that would have an architectural element.

Ms. Sexton said that it is not a very nice architectural element.  She said that they are in the concrete business and could do nice concrete cut-out work where they are attractive looking.

Mr. Cleantis asked if generally speaking, those buildings essentially fit in terms of the aesthetics or the way they are built - the ones you see all over the countryside.

Mr. Watson said that they are pre-manufactured.

Mr. Cleantis said that he is hearing a lot of descent from the Board and thought the Board is going to want finished sides on all four and the buildings to have a more aesthetic look to them.  

Ms. Sexton said that this is in the middle of a residential area, although she knows it is industrial.

Mr. Cleantis said that also, when this thing came up, the Board was assured that these buildings were going to be very aesthetic and in fact, there were some different profiles and gables, etc..

Mr. Gibbons said that they are seeing groups of nothing here - they are not seeing a picture of what these things are going to look like.

Ms. Sexton said if they’re metal buildings, they all know what they look like no matter how they’re dressed up.

Mr. Merante said just go to Wappingers of Peekskill, and you can see them.

Mr. Cleantis said that the landscaping is not going to hide them a hundred percent - even in ten years.  He said that the architecture has to stand for itself and then the landscaping would enhance it.

Mr. Gibbons asked how tall.

Mr. Watson said less than fifteen feet.

Mr. Gibbons said that according to the report, they are going to be taking out two acres worth of trees and because of that, he thought they need to go to CAC.  Mr. Gibbons said that he wondered how this would affect the Timber Harvest Law.  He asked if bathrooms would be utilized for that.

Mr. Watson said no, there’ll be a (inaudible) facility at the manager’s corners.

Mr. Gibbons asked if that was open to the public.

Mr. Watson said that there’s one in the office.

Mr. Gibbons asked if any of these units were going to have electricity supplied to them.

Mr. Watson said no.

Mr. Gibbons asked if there were fire alarms, etc., because he knows the lease is going to say “no anything being stored there”, but we know what human nature does.  He asked what they had for a fire alarm system and that he’d like to get a report from the Fire Department.

Mr. Cleantis said to Mr. Gibbons that in that vain, he’d also be talking about emergency access.

Mr. Gibbons said correct.

Mr. Meehan said that he thought the Board should take a look at the type of lease that is going to be presented.  He asked what they were/were not permitted to put in these units and what the penalty was if they were found to have this stuff, especially hazardous material.

Ms. Sexton asked if people were going to be allowed to store motorcycles, motor vehicles, gasoline containing vehicles in these storage units.

Mr. Watson said that he could not recite it chapter and verse, but the law is very specific about what is put in there.  He said that they would certainly give the Board a sample lease.

Ms. Doherty asked how they monitor that.

Mr. Merante said that was his other question and also, what are the legal ramifications.

Ms. Herring referred to Chapter 175-57.1 and read a section aloud.  

Mr. Merante said on site, but how about in it.

Mr. Watson said that it is still on site.

Mr. Merante asked Mr. Pagones if these (inaudible) the same rights of a private home if there is a suspicion of something on there in the law.

Mr. Pagones said that he thought it was a lot of times in the lease. It provides for what the landlord can do.  He said that if there is something about the law, the police have to get a search warrant.  Mr. Pagones said that the landlord might be able to put a provision in the lease that says that he can go in there.  

Ms. Doherty said that he can monitor the use.

Ms. Sexton said that usually they maintain a key to the padlock.

Mr. Merante said that his concern is and thought everyone on the Board was concerned with the fact that this is the first one in this community and they have to think of precedent here.

Ms. Sexton said that she hoped it was the last.

Mr. Gibbons said that according to the project information part one, section four talks about bedrock, etc.  He asked if they were looking at any blasting that might occur on this site.

Mr. Watson said (inaudible).

Mr. Gibbon said that question 8, “What is the water table?” is not answered, and that he was sure the applicant was well aware of the new blasting law in Town.  He said that question 11, “Does the project site contain any species...?”says “no, but more to follow.”   Mr. Gibbons asked if they had that report.

Mr. Watson said they do not yet.

Mr. Gibbons said that with regard to question 20, if this was the site he was thinking of, he knows there is an awful lot of fill that went in there earlier and he wondered about ground samples if they’re doing blasting, especially where the fill was.  He said that because of the nature of this project, there is going to be trash generated.  People will be putting stuff in there,  pulling it out, deciding  they don’t want it, and will then leave it on the side.  Mr. Gibbons said that he’d like to know what they have for either trash bins or a recycling.

Mr. Cleantis asked if they had any dumpsters on the property.

Mr. Watson said no.

Mr. Cleantis asked if that was commonly done for this type of site.

Mr. Watson said probably, and frankly, they hadn’t thought of it.

Ms. Herring said that she thought they didn’t want to encourage people to leave everything there.

Mr. Gibbons said that he understood that, but it is kind of the nature of the beast.

Mr. Cleantis asked if there was going to be a chain-linked fence around it.

Mr. Watson said that in part, it will be chain-linked and part will be architectural aluminum.

Mr. Cleantis said that the plan did not show lighting and he asked if they were going to have some lighting.

Mr. Watson said that there would be security lighting.

Mr. Cleantis said that there will be down lighting as well and asked if that was right.

Mr. Watson said yes.

Mr. Gibbons referred to Number 23, water usage a day being one gallon.  He said that meant that the toilet would only be flushed once or twice a day.

Mr. Meehan said that they showed a proposed gate on the northwest corner.

Mr. Watson said that he believed that was for access to the drainage facilities just so they can get back there for maintenance purposes.

Ms. Sexton said that the hours of use would be 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. on Monday through Friday,  8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on the weekends, and will be open on the holidays, so it is really seven days a week.  She said that it says curtailed hours during the winter season and asked if it was until four or five o’clock.

Mr. Watson said that it is going to be dictated by the light, so that they don’t have to have a lot of outside lighting.

Ms. Sexton said that there will be no inside lighting inside the units at all.

Mr. Watson said yes, the units will have a light in them.

Ms. Doherty said, so the units will have electricity.

Mr. Watson said that they will have lights in them, but he did not think (did not finish sentence).

Mr. Merante said that he tried to total up the number of units by the description, and came to a total of 124.  He asked if that was anywhere near the total.

Ms. Herring said that the parking estimates will be some 125 units.

Mr. Gibbons asked if they wide enough to get a car down the middle.  He asked why there was a five foot gap between the buildings.

Mr. Watson said that the maximum length of a building that you can have is 150 feet, so they have to make another building.  He said that they need five feet between the buildings and he believed that was the minimum according to the Code, and they didn’t want to make a driving alley through there.

Mr. Cleantis said that the two buildings are 305 feet, which is longer than a football field.

Mr. Watson said no, that was not correct.  He said that the number Mr. Cleantis said was not correct.

Mr. Merante asked if they were not 150 foot buildings.

Mr. Watson said that there are only two that are that long.  He referred to the plan, pointed to the other buildings and said that they are shorter.

Ms. Sexton said that they comply with the Code, but she thought Mr. Cleantis was trying to say that the visual impact is a football field.  She said that she thought he was talking about the visual impact of these long, railroad-like buildings.

Mr. Cleantis said that he was not trying to make a judgement, but was trying to give a perspective of what it would look like.  

Mr. Watson said that there would be extensive landscaping and screening around it.

Mr. Cleantis asked Mr. Watson if it is required to have lights inside those units.

Mr. Watson said that he did not know the answer to that, but he would check.

Mr. Cleantis asked if they would be put on timers as the fire issue is a big thing especially if this is unsupervised for the most part.

Mr. Watson said that he would check.

Ms. Herring said that she would say, having used storage units many times, a light is recommended even in the back.

Mr. Gibbons asked if they were going to put posts at the end of the buildings so that when the turn the corners, they would not clip the end of the buildings.

Mr. Watson said that they are there.

Mr. Gibbons said that again, he would like to see a rendition of a sidewalk the entire length of the property on the highway side.

Mr. Meehan asked if they would consider an intercom system since they were talking about a three hundred foot length building, in case someone hurt himself and needed to yell for help.

Mr. Watson said that he would discuss that with his client.  He said that people are clocked in, clocked out, there is manager on-site who is going to be inspecting it (did not finish sentence).

Mr. Meehan said yes, but the guy could bleed to death before someone finds him.

Mr. Gibbons asked if the description of the house was a three bedroom, three bath.

Ms. Giachinta said two bedroom.  She said that the third bedroom was turned into an office, so half of the first floor is actually the office now.

Mr. Gibbons asked if it met the requirements of the setbacks on a house.

Mr. Watson said yes.

Ms. Herring said that they’d like to see a lighting plan, the landscape plan needs some more details - species and sizes, it was recommended that the trees in front be varied to give a less monotonous look, a section 239 referral to the County is required, a DOT permit will be required for a curb cut, and a referral to Bibbo.  She asked if it was correct to assume the sign out front would not be lit either.

Mr. Watson said yes.

Ms. Herring said that the EAF indicates blasting and asked if they would add that to the plat.

Mr. Cleantis asked if Ms. Herring’s office foresaw any public controversy on this matter.  

Ms. Herring said that she did not know.

Mr. Cleantis asked the same question to Mr. Watson.

Mr. Watson said that it is the first time out and they’ll see.

Ms. Doherty asked Ms. Herring if she also mentioned that the compliance with the Design Standards should also be something that is addressed.

Ms. Herring said that she did not specifically, as Ms. Doherty had mentioned it earlier.  She said that as far as the new regulation - the amendment to the Code, this does conform.  Ms. Herring said that the operating hours are from the Code, the building height...this was passed and approved and adopted into the Code.

Andrew Pidala returned to the table.

Polhemus Construction Co., Inc. - Site Plan Application - Route 9D, Garrison: Submission of Revised Plans

Mr. Cleantis said that from the November 2005 meeting, there were a number of concerns.  The Planning Board had concerns including noise, dust, incompatible uses, hours of operation, comments regarding designated parking areas, screening and health and safety issues.  He said that hopefully Mr. Watson would address some or all of them this evening with his revised plans.

Mr. Watson said that they’ve been working on the plans for about two years now and have tried to respond to the Board’s comments.  He said that in the latest plan, they’ve responded to all the physical comments the Board had.  First of all, with regard to question on noise, they went out and took noise samples over two different days around the entire site and came up with a reading at five locations.  Mr. Watson pointed out the locations to the Board.  He said that they also took readings out at the corners, but haven’t shown them on the plan because they are further distant and actually the results of the testing is such that they would be less of an impact than the ones shown.  Mr. Watson said that they’ve taken the three largest increases at the property lines that would happen and tabulated them.  He said that they’ve repositioned the crusher to get a more optimal spot on the site, where they would average out the impacts and thus lower them, rather than have it closer to one side than the other.  Mr. Watson said that the largest anticipated decibel increase is two.  The Code permits an increase of below five.  Mr. Watson said that this requires that the applicant maintain the manufacturer’s specifications with regard to mufflers, etc., on the machinery.  He said that it demonstrates that this proposed use may not violate noise provisions of the zoning code.  Mr. Watson said that with regard to the concern with screening, they’ve re-looked at the entire site.

Mr. Merante said that Mr. Watson was talking about the mufflers on the engines themselves.  He asked about the crushing itself.

Mr. Watson said that the machinery needs to be maintained, so they said very specifically that the operator needs to maintain the equipment according to the manufacturer’s specifications.  

Mr. Merante said that he noticed that he just said also, “in maintaining the muffler on the equipment for the manufacturer’s instructions”.  He said that is for the muffler and asked if that was the muffler on the engine.

Mr. Watson said that he should go further.  He said that he should maintain the equipment according to the manufacturer’s recommendations because they publish the expected noise levels from this machinery and they use that expected noise level in order to determine what the expected noise levels would be at the property line, so it is necessary that it be maintained.

Mr. Merante said that he sees the radius measurements and ratings and asked if that was also the crushing operation itself.  He said that they’re dropping rocks in the crushers and crushing them and asked if there was a muffler on that.

Mr. Watson said that is the operation.  

The applicant said no, there’s no muffler on the crusher.

Mr. Cleantis asked Mr. Watson if there was a proposal to change the machine that is there already and if this was a new machine going in.

Mr. Watson said that it is a machine they already own and it is not onsite today.

Mr. Cleantis asked if there has been crushing there for a long time.

Mr. Watson said that there was many years ago.

Mr. Cleantis asked if when it was, there was a lot of noise.  

The applicant said not particularly.

Mr. Cleantis asked if there were dust issues.

Mr. Watson said that the dust can be handled with a mister that is attached to the machine.

Ms. Sexton asked where the crusher was now.

Mr. Watson said on the Philipstown Industrial Park site.

Ms. Sexton asked if they used it there.

Mr. Watson said yes.

Mr. Watson said that with that caveat, that maintenance should be a condition of any Resolution.  He said that the noise issue they think is within guidelines.  Mr. Watson said that they’ve looked at the screening.  There was some suggestion about bringing the screening up to the back of the building, but they are the back of barns and they didn’t see any real function in that, so they did extend and then supplied the planting to the southwest.  He said that if the Board recalled, they had some screening planted here (pointed out).  A comment from Mr. Miller’s office was that it was insufficient, so they’ve backed that up with another set of screening and on the profiles given to the Board, they show that the back story will fill the under story that was vacant from the existing screening and they’ve thickened that up.  They’ve provided a gate at the entrance.  The gate will have alternating boards, so you can’t see through it.  Mr. Watson said that they’ve added a screen in front of the building.  Again, where they have a stand of existing trees with the under story it’s been removed, the little branches are gone, and they’ve added plantings behind that to provide more screening for somebody passing by in the road.  They’ve provided a row of screening along the driveway to the house to separate the house from the operation.  He said that he believed those were the two major issues with regard to the site plan.  Mr. Watson said that they’ve added a couple of things - the curb cuts.  He said that they’ve adjusted the stock piles just slightly to make things work better.  The drainage system is the same as it was before.  With regard to the issue of the house/the use issue, the two uses are clearly allowed in the zoning law - they’ve been there.  Mr. Watson said that he thought you have to cross a property line in order to really raise an issue of compatibility with a property owner who wants to do two uses that are both allowed.  Both are permitted, so they are not proposing to change that.

Mr. Cleantis asked if Mr. Miller’s office had looked at the landscaping plan and the screening.

Ms. Herring said yes.

Mr. Cleantis said and they have noted the sizing and the spacing of the plant materials.

Ms. Herring said yes, actually they did.  She said that the landscaping has been beefed up a lot.  They do provide a visual screen between the house and the site and they have added a second row behind it.  She said that they had asked them to screen the house on the adjacent property.

Mr. Cleantis asked if this fell under the requirement of seventy five percent coverage (Design Standards regard to coverage).

Ms. Doherty said that it is not on Route 9.  She said that she thought the Design Standards were for the buildings on Route 9.

Ms. Herring said that with regard to screening, the Code does say that mechanical equipment must be completely screened from the road.  She said that she thought the height was five to six or six to seven feet maximum for what they’re planning on putting in, and asked if that was correct.

Mr. Watson said that he didn’t remember.

Ms. Herring said that all of the evergreen trees are a maximum of six to seven feet in height.

Mr. Cleantis asked if the landscaping between the house and the crusher is of sufficient size to actually work when it is put in.

Ms. Herring said that is the question.  She said that it is six to seven feet, so the spacing is slightly farther, but not of too much concern.  Ms. Herring said that the problem is that it is a two story house, so from the second floor, it is obviously clearly visible.

Mr. Cleantis said that his point was not to screen the house entirely from the site, it is just that it is a new thing put into the plan and he wanted to make sure the plants are big enough. 

Ms. Herring said that the trees that are proposed are evergreens and are approximately six to seven feet.  She said that they would recommend that right along the house to maybe increase one of three slightly higher.

Ms. Sexton said that she wanted to know what they’re going to do about the dust.

Mr. Cleantis asked if they were going to have a mister.

Mr. Watson responded (inaudible).

Ms. Sexton said that anywhere she had ever seen a rock crusher operate,  there is dust all over the place - it just billows no matter how much they mist it.

Mr. Watson said that is probably because they don’t mist it.  

Ms. Sexton said that you’ve got houses there and asked  about the noise levels for people living there who have to listen to the rock crusher go all day long.

Mr. Pidala said that this is a big operation and the crushers are a lot larger.

Ms. Sexton said that once you get permission for a crusher, a crusher is a crusher.  She asked again about the people who live there and have to listen to it all day.  Ms. Sexton said that in the city, they’re complaining that kids can’t study because they’re building next to the school.  She said that this is forever - it is going to go and make noise for people who haven’t had this noise situation.  She said that they live there, most of them are elderly and are in a retirement situation.

Mr. Gibbons asked where.

Ms. Sexton said the trailer park.  She said that it is adjacent to it and you’ve got houses on either side, three children living in a rental unit, which probably shouldn’t be on the property at all as a combined use because of the health and safety and if nobody else cares about them, she guessed the Board should.

Mr. Watson said that they’ve been over this - Mr. Miller’s made that point time again.  He said that the Board is not there to protect them from themselves.

Ms. Sexton said that she was not protecting anybody from themselves.

Mr. Watson said that she was.  

Ms. Sexton said that she was concerned about the people and thought they were there as a Planning Board to do what was good for the general public according to the guidelines of the law that is in front of them.

Mr. Watson said absolutely and he agreed with her one hundred percent.  He said that the law says they can deliver 4.99 decibels for the property line, and they’ve demonstrated that they’re only delivering two.  Mr. Watson said that is forty percent of what they are allowed to do.  He said that they are within their guidelines.  Mr. Watson said that if Ms. Sexton didn’t like the guidelines, she should change the guidelines, but those are the guidelines.

Ms. Sexton said that she guessed she was there to express her opinion like anybody else.

Mr. Cleantis said yes, and that was the bottom line.

Ms. Sexton said that they should be somewhat concerned about the health and safety.

Mr. Cleantis said that he thought it was Mr. Watson’s absolute prerogative to indicate that there is a five decibel limit, and they are under it.  He said that he thought it was very important for them to recognize that, but by the same token it is also each member’s prerogative to express concern over issues that they think are planning issues.

Ms. Sexton asked what the residential noise limit was and if it was the same as the industrial limit according to their Code.

Ms. Herring said performance standard for site plans (did not finish sentence).

Mr. Cleantis asked what two decibels sounded like and if it was like a car muffler.  He asked what kind of noise it was going to produce.

Mr. Watson said that he did not know how to tell him the answer to that and that he did not know if he knew the answer to that.

Mr. Meehan asked how many hours a day the crushers were going to be working.

Mr. Polhemus said seven hours.

Mr. Cleantis asked how many days a week.

Mr. Polhemus said probably five days.  He said that the weather conditions have a lot to do with the operation.

Mr. Meehan asked if they did not work on rainy days.

Mr. Polhemus said that on rainy days it is tough to work with the material because it gets muddy.

Mr. Meehan asked if they worked from seven in the morning until four.

Mr. Polhemus said eight, maybe nine to four probably - something like that with the crushing.

Mr. Cleantis asked if Mr. Watson knew how (inaudible) is where this is.

Mr. Watson referred to the plan, pointed it out, and said that they did it on two different days.  He said that you get Route 9 traffic noise there and that he truthfully did not know how to demonstrate it to the Board.    

Mr. Cleantis asked if the crusher was there at the present time.

Mr. Polhemus said yes.

Mr. Cleantis asked if it was operational at the present time.  He said that he was going to suggest that the Board get together, watch it in operation and listen to it.

Mr. Meehan asked if the loudness of the crusher was dependent upon the type of material they are trying to break up.

The applicant said that you don’t hear the crushing over the motor.  

Mr. Meehan said that the motor generates all the noise and it is not the crushing of the rock.

Mr. Polhemus said that was about the size of it - you don’t hear the actual rock crushing.  He said that there was no difference with no material in it as there was when they did the test.  He said that they could not record a difference in the decibels.

Ms. Sexton asked who did the recordings.

Mr. Polhemus said that they did.

Ms. Herring asked what time they were done and said that she did not see it on the plan.

Mr. Watson said that he did not know if they put it on there.  He said that they did morning readings around ten o’clock and afternoon readings around three o’clock.

Mr. Pidala asked if the applicant could start at nine o’clock until three o’clock.

Mr. Watson said that they talked about that in the Statement of Use.

Mr. Meehan asked if this type of material was used for roads or driveways.

Mr. Polhemus said the dirt roads.

Mr. Meehan asked where they’d go if they didn’t have it there.

Mr. Polhemus said that Mr. Chirico suggested that the material have some crushed material in his Item 4.  Mr. Polhemus said that is how the crusher had come about.

Mr. Meehan said so they would be providing material for the Town too.

Mr. Polhemus said yes.

Mr. Merante asked what the largest stuff was that could be put into it at one time.

Mr. Polhemus three to four inches.  

Mr. Merante said so there is nothing bigger than three or four inches.

Mr. Polhemus said that is about it and anything bigger than that plugs up.

Mr. Cleantis said that they have a property that is zoned for this kind of an operation and they have a rule that says five decibels is the maximum allowable and they are hearing that this property is at around two decibels.  The dust issue he did not know was satisfactory.  He said that they are going to use a sprinkler system.  Mr. Cleantis asked the if anyone wanted to hear the crusher going.

The Board members said yes.

Mr. Cleantis asked the applicant if that could be arranged.

Mr. Polhemus said as long as the weather stays pretty warm and things are not frozen up.

Mr. Cleantis asked if when things were frozen up, the crusher would be closed down.

Mr. Polhemus said in the winter time.

Mr. Cleantis said so they are not talking an all year around operation.  He asked approximately what time of year it would be in operation.  

Mr. Polhemus said that it depends on the weather.

Mr. Cleantis asked if there were other industrial properties within about 500 to 1000 feet in that area.

Mr. Watson said that there are industrial properties in there.  He pointed to Lyons’ soil mining.

Mr. Cleantis said that with Lyons making noise himself, it should not be an issue.  He asked what was behind.

Mr. Watson said that it gets very steep and there are residences back there.

Mr. Cleantis said way back.

Mr. Watson said that they are fairly far back.

Mr. Cleantis said and they can hear Route 9.

Mr. Watson said that he was sure they could.

Mr. Cleantis where the barns are.

Mr. Watson pointed it out on the plan.  

Mr. Cleantis asked if it was being used as commercial or industrial.

Mr. Watson said that he believed Mr. Lyons had the house rented.

Mr. Cleantis said that it was a commercial property.

Mr. Watson said yes.

Mr. Cleantis said so the biggest concern in terms of noise would be across that road.

Mr. Meehan asked if Mr. Lyons crushed rocks too.

The applicant said that he did not know whether or not he did.

Mr. Merante asked if they had a soil mining permit for this property or they would be trucking everything in.

Mr. Polhemus said that their soil mining permit expired in 1982.  He said that in back then, it was a bad time and things weren’t straightened out.

Mr. Merante said so a soil mining permit will be requested.

Mr. Polhemus said no, there’s no material there.

Mr. Watson said that it is all finished reclaimed slope.

Mr. Merante asked if they could say approximately how many loads of eighteen wheelers would be coming in and out.

Ms. Herring said that she did not believe that was addressed in the Statement of Use. 

The applicant said twenty and that it depends on how far the material has to come from.

Mr. Pidala asked if with regard to the time, they would start at nine.

Mr. Watson said that he thought they had that in the Statement of Use.

Mr. Meehan asked if they had any trouble with putting the trucks on Horseman’s Trail.

The applicant said that it is very nice for getting on and off, and is set up nice for going in and going south.

Mr. Cleantis asked Mr. Polhemus how many hours a week during the April to November time frame, there would actually be crushing.  He asked if he said that it would not be used all the time.

Mr. Polhemus said that it depends on the material.  He said that the material that is going to be used there is like an Item 4 material and it also makes stone - a couple different sizes.  Mr. Polhemus said that the Item 4 is manufactured there for private use for people that want to grade their roads and they have to mix that material a certain way so that it stays on all these steep slopes.  He said that it is hard to purchase this material from other people that make it because they’re not as careful when the make it - too sandy, etc.

Mr. Cleantis asked how often within the course of a week.

Mr. Polhemus said that it all depends on the type of work.  He said that Polhemus Construction is kind of diversified and the work it accepts depends on the people in the community.  Mr. Polhemus said that it is a supply and demand thing, so it is very difficult to put it.

Mr. Cleantis said that he’s hearing it may not be eight to five.  He said that it is sporadic.

Mr. Polhemus said that right now it is sporadic.  He said that right now, he’s doing it three times a month, but he wouldn’t want to be held to that.

Mr. Cleantis said that it gives the Board an idea as to the amount of time.  He said that it is not a full-time thing.

Ms. Herring said that her office does noise measurements fairly often for DEIS’s and she found the noise measurements a little difficult to believe and is why she questioned what time a day they were taken.  She said that they did noise measurements recently on an undeveloped parcel in Kingston off of Route 9 and they were at fifty something.

Ms. Doherty asked Ms. Herring if there was any reason why Tim Miller Associates was not going to make an assessment of their own.

Ms. Herring said that actually, they looked at that today and will have it for the next meeting.

Mr. Gibbons said not Miller Associates, but Bibbo.

Ms. Herring said that if the Board wants to recommend that.

Mr. Gibbons said that Mr. Miller has admitted that he has an interest in this.  He said that he’s admitted that he knows these people and that they are his friends.  

Mr. Cleantis said if that is what the Board wants.

Mr. Merante said that he thought the primary concern of the Board is the noise.

Ms. Sexton said that she thought at one point, they said the rock crusher was portable and asked if it was.

Mr. Polhemus said that it is on wheels.

Ms. Sexton said so it has a portability to it.  She asked if they could bring it to that site.

Mr. Polhemus said that it is not that portable.

Mr. Merante said that it is like a house trailer - it is moved once, and that’s about it.

Ms. Sexton said so you move it and you set it.

Mr. Gibbons asked if the applicant would consider with regard to the hours of operation...they had mentioned 9:00 a.m. until like 4:30 in the afternoon.

The applicant said that they quit at 4:00, so nobody would be there at 4:30.

Mr. Cleantis said that it is 9:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m.

Mr. Gibbons said that was fine.  He said that 4:00 p.m. is even better.

Mr. Cleantis said so they’ve got 9:00 to 4:00 Monday through Friday.  

Mr. Gibbons said that he had no problem with that.

Ms. Doherty said that she had a problem with the appropriateness of the use at that location all together.  She said that she understood it complies with the Code, but wondered sometimes that when the Code was originally enacted, if the people who did it could have imagined every possible scenario.  Ms. Doherty said that one in particular, is the idea of the residents on the same lot as an operation like this.  She said that she did not think that was something that crossed someone’s mind - to have a family live on the same property with a rock crusher going.  Ms. Doherty said that she thought they had to apply some common sense.

Ms. Herring said that she thought the Board had expressed getting a memo for incompatible uses and it could go ahead and do that and make a recommendation to the Town Board to change the Code, but it is currently the Code that these uses are provided for and they are allowed.

Mr. Watson said that they already have a punch list of the things they are not allowed to do.  He said that there is a very limited list of the things they are allowed to do and there is a very significant list of things that they are not allowed to do.  Mr. Watson said that now we are talking about disallowing us for doing things we are allowed to do on the property.  He said that he recognizes that the Board may have a philosophical question with regard to the appropriateness of the use, but that is what the law says - the law permits this use.  Mr. Watson said that the appropriate thing to do with that question is to make that memo and make that recommendation and have that law changed.  He said that Mr. Polhemus at that point may decide to argue against the law and try to convince the Town Board to change the law, but in the meantime, if they’ve got a list of things they can’t do and a list of things they can do, they want to be able to do the things they can do providing they meet the Board’s standards, and he believes they have met those standards.

Mr. Gibbons said that he understands the concerns about people living in this house.  He said that it is an industrial site.  The previous applicant is also on an industrial site and the Board is saying they can put in a two or three bedroom home because it is the caretaker’s place.  Mr. Gibbons said that this applicant can easily turn around and say that once these people leave, it is going to be a caretaker’s place.  He said that is where he has a problem - they’re treating one set of people with one rule and another with another set of rules.  Mr. Gibbons said that he knows the uses are different, but they have to treat them the same.

Ms. Herring said that the use is a significant factor to that.  She said that there is a big difference between a self-storage facility and (inaudible) and how that affects the residents.

Mr. Gibbons said that he could appreciate and understood that, but the Board is saying you can do it on one, but you can’t do it...and that’s where he kind of has his problems.

Ms. Doherty said that there is no consideration in the Code for the (inaudible) and Mr. Watson is right - the Board could ask the Town Board to look at it.

Ms. Herring said that the site plan indicates the heavy equipment on the site will be parked in the two employee parking spots in the evening.  She said that they feel the Board should ask the applicant to designate additional spots should the truck ever need maintenance or one not leave the site, as the employees would have no place to park. 

Mr. Polhemus said that it is a one employee operation.

Ms. Herring asked how many trucks or heavy equipment needed to be parked in those spots.

Mr. Polhemus said one.

Ms. Herring said so in theory, he had one spot for an employee parking and one for a truck.  She asked if the proposed gate to screen the entrance would be closed while the rock crusher is going and during the day, even when the site is in operation.

Mr. Polhemus said that if a car is coming in, it’s got to be open.

Ms. Herring asked if they came in often enough.

The applicant said (inaudible) during the day.

Ms. Herring said that the applicant said there were only truck deliveries every so many days, but then the rock crusher can continue.  She said that the days when they don’t have trucks scheduled to deliver (did not finish sentence).

Mr. Polhemus said that it would actually be closed.

Mr. Watson said that if the Board wanted, they could put a clicker on the gate.

Ms. Herring said that it provides screening from cars driving by.  She said that obviously, the applicant knows how her office feels about incompatible uses and it should be noted that HUD standards for residential structures...the noise levels provided exceed those standards for residential, so those may be for the property line, but obviously the house is going to be subject to slightly higher because it is within the property line.  Ms. Herring said that clarification on the hours of operation is as what the Board has just requested and no outdoor lighting at this site.  She asked Mr. Watson to add a note to the plat.

Mr. Cleantis asked if the Board wanted to hear the crusher.

The Board members said that they did.  After a brief discussion, the Board decided to meet informally.  The Planning Board members would call 845-424-3477, and make arrangements for two or three members, and no more than that, at one time.

Mr. Polhemus asked if after they heard it, they were going to accept the plan.

Mr. Cleantis said no, there will be more discussion.  He said that in the meantime, his agent has also expressed the decibel levels and legal perimeters in terms of the Town.  Mr. Cleantis said that he had no idea why the Board wanted to hear it.  He said that after hearing it, maybe that will satisfy them that this thing is not as overbearing.

Mr. Polhemus asked if with regard to the use, it would be a problem.

Mr. Cleantis said that he was asking him questions for the entire Board and he would have to say again that the Board is not supposed to be a subjective Board - it is not whether it likes something or not personally.  He said that they go by the rule of law and are bound by the Code.

Ms. Sexton asked Mr. Cleantis if he would tell her what the purpose of a public hearing is.

Mr. Cleantis said that we have a public hearing to get public input certainly.

Ms. Sexton asked him what you are supposed to do with that public input.

Mr. Cleantis said that you are supposed to listen to the public input and apply it to the rule of law.  He said that it is not just what the masses want, because the masses will burn Frankenstein every time.  Mr. Cleantis said that you apply the rule of law and say this is the rule of law, and this is what the community wants, and if they’re at odds, you may end up applying the rule of law to a particular project and then you may be able to get the individuals to go to the Town Board and change the law.  He said that his understanding as Chairman is that the Board is there to apply the Code of the Town of Philipstown.  They are not there to apply what they, individually or personally like or dislike.  Mr. Cleantis said that within that Code, there are variations of how we apply the Code.  He said that personally he did not think the Board had the right to impose something beyond the rule of law and that they have to work within the rule of law first and then work with the applicant to make it work the best with everybody out there.

Ms. Doherty said that they also have to consider the SEQRA process.

Ms. Sexton agreed and said because she thought there are mitigating circumstances.  They worry about a person’s view, how close the house is to the road, do they get a variance, etc.  Ms. Sexton said that she really wanted to express that she is concerned for businesses that have to function, but is really concerned about people who live near the businesses and their safety.

Mr. Cleantis said that it would be irresponsible of the Planning Board not to mention every single concern that people on the Planning Board feel.  He said that they may be overridden by virtue of a, the rule of law and b, other people’s opinions.  Mr. Cleantis said that as Chairman, he never believed that they are intended to be adversarial to the public and suspected that they are to be servants of the community.  They are there for the people in this community, so that when there is an application before the Board and it meets Code, the Board’s job is to try and help bring that project to fruition, and not to undermine the project,  in the best capacity for the community.

Miscellaneous

-Planning Board Workshop of February 7, 2005

Ms. Sexton said that there were only three members present.  They did not have a quorum.  She said that there was no decision-making.  Ms. Sexton said that they rehashed the ability of a person with multiple acres to put more than one house.

Mr. Cleantis asked what they wanted essentially and if they wanted to be able to put more than one house on.

Ms. Sexton said, well the people that wrote the Comprehensive Plan, yes.  She said that they want to put a maximum of at least four houses.  Ms. Sexton said that Susan Bates discussed a maximum of four houses without anybody telling them where to put them or where they’re set and if their property is a hundred acres, and they put four houses on it, then the rest of the land would be put into a conservation easement forever and ever - not to be used for anything else.

Mr. Cleantis said that the Planning Board did not go for that and has been adamantly opposed

to that from the beginning.  He said that it has stated that in letters and so on, and he did not think the members would change their minds.

Ms. Sexton said that Ms. Herring was very helpful in trying to explain the reasons why you really wouldn’t want to go this route.

Mr. Cleantis said that he thought they tried to explain that and they just didn’t understand.

Ms. Sexton said that it all depends, but then the second go-around was Route 9 and its ability to (did not finish sentence).

Mr. Cleantis said and that is the twenty five foot setback versus what we have.

Ms. Sexton said right.

Mr. Cleantis said and again, at the previous workshop, the Board was very adamant in terms of what its recommendations were on that.

Ms. Sexton said that was basically it.  She said that they rehashed those two issues and not another thing.  Ms. Sexton said that nothing different came out of it.  She said that they did want to meet with Mr. Cleantis and get another date for another meeting, but somehow that all got lost in the translation, so they didn’t get in touch.

Mr. Cleantis asked if the Board was supposed to set up another workshop.

Ms. Sexton said yes.

After a brief discussion, the Board decided to hold a workshop on Friday, March 3, 2006 at 3:00 p.m. at 10 North Street.

Ms. Herring suggested including Mr. Russell.

Mr. Merante said that they should check with him first, as he was not sure he wanted to be there and didn’t think he needed to be there.

Mr. Cleantis asked if there were any more issues to address.

Ms. Doherty said yes, there is still accessory housing and more.  

Mr. Meehan asked what the status of the Comprehensive Plan was as far as the Town Board is concerned.

Mr. Brower said that it should be adopted the first week in March.  He said that there is a big difference between the zoning and the Comprehensive Plan.  Mr. Brower said that the Comprehensive Plan is only a guide.  The zoning is the final word.

Mr. Cleantis asked how you can approve the Comprehensive Plan before you approve the zoning. 

Mr. Brower said that the Comprehensive Plan is a guide.  The zoning follows that, because the zoning is what your law is.

Mr. Cleantis said so the recommendations that the Planning Board is making is on the zoning.

Ms. Doherty said now.  She said that the last ones they made were on the Comprehensive Plan.  Ms. Doherty said that the Comprehensive Plan, in essence, theoretically, is supposed to be the basis - it is the way you want to see the Town go.  Again, theoretically, you are not supposed to enact zoning that’s contrary to your Comprehensive Plan.  So if the Comprehensive Plan for instance says, as it does, that they should be reducing the setbacks on Route 9 (did not finish sentence).

Mr. Chmar said that was removed - the final draft does not have the setback recommendation or requirement and it is based he thought, on the Board saying, “this is more complicated than just the setback”, so that’s no longer in there.

Mr. Brower said that the Comprehensive Plan is a guide - it doesn’t say they have to follow it a hundred percent.  He said that is why they are going to sit down with the Zoning Review Committee, come up with the zoning laws, change them and whatever they have to do.  Then it goes to hearing.  Mr. Brower said that there is nothing written in stone.

Ms. Sexton asked if Mr. Pagones would like to comment on the standing of the Comprehensive Plan to New York State.

Mr. Pagones said no, he would not.

One of the Board members said that it is a mess.

Ms. Sexton said that she knows it is a mess and asked if the Comprehensive Plan had legal standing with precedence right now (did not finish sentence).

Mr. Pagones said that he did not know and would have to check on that.

Ms. Sexton said that she could tell him that it does.  She said that it is not just a guide - once a Comprehensive Plan is adopted in New York State, it serves as the basis for future law and it has been challenged three times under three precedent cases right now, which they are always referred to when it comes up.  

Mr. Brower said that it will all be set up in the zoning and then if somebody wants to challenge the zoning, they have that legal right to do it.

Mr. Merante said but to say that there is no reflection of the Comprehensive Plan in zoning when you create new zoning, makes the whole point futile.  He said why go through a Comprehensive Plan and in five years of this planning, say that the zoning is not going to reflect it.  It has got to reflect the Comprehensive Plan, otherwise why have a Comprehensive Plan - five years and thousands of dollars down the drain then.

Mr. Watson said that the seat on the Zoning Advisory Committee from the picture he takes on it, is to work on how to implement what’s recommended - not to approve the concept.  It is to take the concept and when you say they approve the language, from his perspective, he’s trying very hard not to impose what he thinks should be how we do things.  

Mr. Chmar said that the Comprehensive Plan provides a concept essentially - it is proposing a concept.  He said that the Zoning Advisory Committee takes that concept and working with Mr. Russell, comes up with the language that is the new zoning.

Mr. Merante said but the Zoning Advisory Committee is not going to produce zoning, which is a direct contradiction.

Mr. Chmar said that he agreed.  He said so you do have a choice of taking this one recommendation out of the Comprehensive Plan, and that is all they are - they are recommendations for this type of zoning.  Mr. Chmar said that Mr. Russell is going to draft the language and then it is up to public scrutiny and Planning Board scrutiny as well. Whether it makes it into the zoning, is really up to the next step of the process.

Mr. Merante said that the concepts of the Comprehensive Plan may not make it into codification, but the ones that do cannot be in contradiction to it.

Mr. Chmar said absolutely.

Mr. Merante said that is a distinction that has to be clear.

Mr. Chmar said right and that’s why it made sense to pull out the Route 9, because that may not have been the right way to address what is the best for Route 9.  

Mr. Merante said that the other strong point that the Planning Board had objection to was the business about large estates with more than one residence on it without subdivision procedures.

Mr. Chmar said, but that is in the Zoning Advisory Committee that they all developed the language there, or somebody did, that is now being suggested and the Planning Board is objecting to it.  He said that is the next step.  Now the Town Board wants to see some zoning come out of the Comprehensive Plan.

Mr. Merante said when that came before the Planning Board for discussion, the Board strongly talked against it.

Mr. Chmar said that then the Planning Board recommends against it and the Town Board then has the decision on whether to pass it.

Mr. Brower said that they have an oda where you are allowed to build four houses.  So now if you take a large parcel of land, you are no longer saying that it has to be divided into four houses, because they are trying to keep most of the land unbuilt.  He said what they are trying to do is say that rather than divide it up into four separate lots, have some kind of a cluster development in one area and save most of the property.  Mr. Brower said that they don’t necessarily have to let them do it by themselves without going to the Planning Board.  He said that when they create the laws they can say it is a good idea, but you still have to go before the Planning Board even though they don’t have to do a subdivision.  Mr. Brower said that was the concept behind it.

Mr. Chmar said that if you write it correctly, you can achieve exactly what the Planning Board wants, which is to make sure it is not subdivided in the future with a house right up against another one, and it might conserve the tract of land and keep it from being divided into four lots.

Ms. Herring said that the oda regulations do, to a point, control it.  She suggested the Planning Board address this issue somewhat like a planned development.  Ms. Herring said that a planned development is a large lot, where the entire lot is looked at in one shot and then that plan is filed and it is a master plan for a large area, which prevents subdivision, subdivision later and so on.

Mr. Cleantis said that he felt the Planning Board was an experienced Board as most members have been on the Board for a number of years.  He said that one of the things they are finding in terms of the workings of Philipstown is “why fix it if it aint broke”?  Mr. Cleantis said that a lot of the things that are coming before the Board are trying to find new ways to do things with the application process, etc., and they essentially have a Philipstown that they want and like and has worked for them.  He said now they are putting in things that are very questionable and not only are they going into the Comprehensive Plan, but it appears that once it goes in there, all of a sudden, zoning has to be fitted into that.  

Mr. Meehan asked if when these people write the new zoning laws, the Planning Board would have the opportunity to review it.

All of the Board members said yes.

Mr. Meehan said that he knows they will have hearings, but he asked if the Town Board would send the material to the Planning Board, the Planning Board would comment, and then forward it back to the Town Board and after that, hold the public hearings.

Mr. Merante said that the Zoning Advisory Committee is going to come up with a package.  He said that Mr. Russell is working on an entire revision.  Mr. Merante said that the Planning Board is going to mull it over, recommend to the Town Board, it will be passed to the Planning Board for its review, and then the public hearings will take place.

Mr. Gibbons said that one of the comments made with regard to the discussion earlier was that the estates could put the houses wherever they wanted, and that is what bothers the Planning Board.  He said that is what they heard.  Mr. Gibbons said that is the soft spot with the Planning Board.  He said that Ms. Herring was correct and if they want to bring a master plan in, the Planning Board will take a look at it, but the idea of one being an estate owner and putting up four houses wherever he wants, is a problem.

Mr. Meehan said that he thought that was what the problem was - everybody read the Comprehensive Plan and saw the recommendations not knowing what was going on, and everyone went off in different directions about what it mean, rather than wait for the Zoning Advisory people to produce a proper zoning law and then let it come before the Planning Board, so maybe they’ll be a better understanding.

Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Pidala seconded the motion.  The meeting ended at 11:05 p.m..  The vote was as follows:





George Cleantis 
-
In favor 





Josephine Doherty
-
In favor





Michael Gibbons
-
In favor





Kerry Meehan

-
In favor





Anthony Merante
-
In favor





Andrew Pidala
-
In favor





Pat Sexton

-
In favor

Respectfully submitted,

Ann M. Gallagher

Note:

These minutes were prepared for the Philipstown Planning Board and are subject to review, comment, emendation and approval thereupon.

Approved:
_______________________________






